
 

 

 

 
 

COUNCIL OFFICES. COALVILLE, LEICESTERSHIRE, LE67 3FJ T TEL (01530) 454545 T  FAX (01530) 454506 
 

DX 23662 COALVILLE T MINICOM : (01530) 454542 T  WEB SITE : http://www.nwleics.gov.uk 

 
Meeting LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 
Time/Day/Date 6.30 pm on Monday, 10 March 2014 
 
Location Board Room, Council Offices, Coalville 
 
Officers to contact Democratic Services (01530 454512) 
 Licensing Enforcement Officer (01530 454528) 
 

 NOTIFICATION OF HEARING 
 

Item  Pages 
 

1  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 

 

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 

 Under the Code of Conduct members are reminded that in declaring 
disclosable interests you should make clear the nature of that interest and 
whether it is pecuniary or non-pecuniary. 
 

 

4  APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT 
OF:  
 

 

 PREMISES:  Sunshine Pizza Limited, 41 High Street, Ibstock, Coalville, 
Leicestershire, LE67 6LH. 

 
APPLICANT: Baykal Kahraman 
 
To determine an application for a variation to the premises licence in respect of 
the above. 
 

Representations have been received from the Leicestershire Police and 
Ibstock Parish Council.  A Notice of Hearing inviting them to attend has been 
sent to them.  If they fail to attend, the hearing can be held in their absence or 
adjourned. 
 
The following documents are attached: - 
 

a) Report of the Licensing Enforcement Officer. 
 
At the beginning of the Hearing, the authority shall explain to the parties the 
procedure it is proposed to follow.  The Hearing shall take the form of a 
discussion led by the authority and cross-examination shall not be permitted 
unless it is required to consider the representations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 - 28 



 
 
Circulation:  
 
Councillor J Geary 
Councillor C Large 
Councillor N Smith 



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE – 10 MARCH 2014 
 

Title of report APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

Contacts 

Councillor Alison Smith MBE 
01530 835668 
alison.smith@nwleicestershire.gov.uk  
 
Environmental Health Team Manager 
01530 454610 
lee.mansfield@nwleicestershire.gov.uk 
 
Licensing Enforcement Officer 
01530 454528 
catherine.ridgway@nwleicestershire.gov.uk  

Purpose of report 

To determine an application for variation of a premises licence in 
respect of premises, Sunshine Pizza Ltd, 41 High Street, Ibstock, 
Coalville, Leicestershire, LE67 6LH.  This report outlines the 
application and summarises the representations received. It also 
highlights the licensing objectives, the relevant parts of 
Government guidance and the pertinent sections of the Licensing 
Authority’s Licensing Policy. 

Council Priorities 
Business and Jobs 
Homes and Communities 

Implications:  

Financial/Staff 
Implications arising from an appeal made to the Magistrates Court 
by anyone aggrieved by the decision of the Sub-Committee. 

Link to relevant Corporate 
Action Team 

Business CAT 

Risk Management 

The risk of incurring costs should the applicant appeal against the 
decision of the Committee.  In any event and in order to mitigate 
these risks, the Committee should give clear reasons for its 
decisions and any such reasons would need to be substantiated in 
Court. 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment 

Equality impact assessment already undertaken, issues identified 
actioned. 

Human Rights 

Article 1 of Protocol 1 of the European Convention of Human 
Rights provides that everyone is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment 
of his possessions, except in the public interest and subject to the 
conditions provided for by law.  

Transformational 
Government 

Not applicable. 

Agenda Item 4

3



Consultees 

Leicestershire Police, Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service, 
Trading Standards, Health and Safety, Environmental Protection, 
Planning, Primary Care Trust, and members of the public/local 
businesses by way of notice on the premises.  

Background papers 

Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, the 
Licensing Act 2003 - all available for reference at 
www.culture.gov.uk and Statement of Licensing Policy -available 
for reference at www.nwleics.gov.uk/licensing   

Recommendations THAT THE SUB-COMMITTEE DETERMINE THE APPLICATION. 

 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The premises currently operate as a pizza takeaway outlet under the authorisation of a 

premises licence. The premises licence authorises late night refreshment.  A copy of 
the premises licence and conditions is attached as Appendix 1.     

 
1.2  A map showing the location of the premises is attached as Appendix 2. 
 
1.3 An application for the variation of premises licence was received electronically from 

Baykal Kahraman on 17 January 2014.  A copy of the application is attached as 
Appendix 3.   
 

1.4 The applicant has applied for additional permission of the Sale by retail of alcohol for 
consumption off the premises during the following times: 
 

  Monday to Thursday  17:00hrs to 23:00hrs  
  Friday and Saturday  17:00hrs to 00:00hrs  
  Sunday  17:00hrs to 23:30hrs  

 
1.5 The applicant has specified steps they intend to take in order to promote the four 

licensing objectives: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder and public safety 
 

• The premises has 24 hour recorded CCTV 
   
 The protection of children from harm and the prevention of public nuisance  
 

• Enforcement of challenge 25 at all times 
  

2.0 REPRESENTATIONS 
  
2.1 In respect of an application to vary, the applicant is responsible for advertising the 

application by way of a notice in specified form at the premises for not less than 28 
consecutive days and in a local newspaper. The applicant placed notice in the Coalville 
Times on 24 January 2014 and Officers are satisfied that the correct notices have been 
displayed at the premises.  Details of the application were also posted onto the Council 
website on 17 January 2014.  

 
2.2 As the application was received electronically, the Licensing Authority is required to 

serve a copy of the application upon each of the responsible authorities, namely, the 
Police, Fire Authorities, Trading Standards Department, Primary Care Trust and the 

4



District Council’s Health and Safety, Environmental Protection and Planning Sections.  
A copy of the application was served upon all of the responsible authorities via email 
on the 17 January 2014. 
 

2.3 On 7 February 2014 a representation was received from Leicestershire Police based 
on the prevention of crime and disorder however following discussions with both 
parties the applicant has agreed to attach conditions to the licence regarding CCTV 
and adopting a Challenge 25 policy. The applicant has agreed in writing to amend the 
operating schedule and Leicestershire Police have now withdrawn their representation.  
A copy of this representation is attached as appendix 4. 
 

2.4 Any other person is able to make representations within 28 days of display of the notice 
of application to the Licensing Authority. One representation was received on 12 
February 2014 from Ibstock Parish Council based on crime and disorder, public safety, 
the prevention of public nuisance and protection of children from harm. Ibstock Parish 
Council were verbally asked if they would consider negotiating however this was 
declined.  A Copy of the representation is attached as Appendix 5. 

 
3.0 STATUTORY GUIDANCE 
 
3.1 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is obliged to have regard to Guidance 

issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. All 
Licensing Committee members have been provided with a full copy of the guidance 
document. Officers consider that paragraphs 2.1 to 2.7, 2.8 to 2.10, 2.18 to 2.24, 2.25 
to 2.35, 3.7 to 3.9, 8.66 to 8.69, 8.72 to 8.80, 9.3, 9.38 to 9.40, 13.16 and 13.17, may 
have a bearing upon the application. 

 
4.0 STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 
4.1 The Sub-Committee is also obliged to have regard to its own Statement of Licensing 

Policy. Officers consider that paragraphs 2.1 to 2.11, 5.1 to 5.3, 6.1, 6.2, 7.1, 7.2, 8.1 
to 8.4, 9.1 to 9.3, 10.1 to 10.5, 10.8, 13.1 to 13.2, and 17.1 17.3 may have a bearing 
upon the application. 

 
5.0      OBSERVATIONS 
 
5.1 The Committee is obliged to determine this application with a view to promoting the 

licensing objectives, which are: 
 

• the prevention of crime and disorder; 

• the prevention of public nuisance; 

• public safety; 

• the protection of children from harm. 
 

5.2 The Committee may take such of the following steps, if any, as it considers necessary 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 
a) Grant the application as requested. 
b) Modify the conditions of the licence, by altering or omitting or adding to them. 
c)  Reject the whole or part of the application.  

 
5.3 There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court against the decision of the Sub-

Committee by the applicant and persons who made relevant representations.  

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



  
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

PREMISES LICENCE 

 

Premises Licence Number NWL20411 

 
Part 1 – Premises Details 

 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including 
Post Town, Post Code 
 
Sunshine 
41-43 High Street 
Ibstock 
Coalville 
Leicestershire 
LE67 6LH 
 

 
Telephone number 
 

 
01530 261282 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out 
of licensable activities 
 
Late night refreshment Sunday to Thursday   23:00  - 23:30 
Late night refreshment Friday and Saturday   23:00  - 00:00 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises 
 
              
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX 1 

7



Part 2 
 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence 
 
Mr Baykal Kahraman 
Sunshine 
41-43 High Street 
Ibstock 
Coalville 
Leicestershire 
LE67 6LH 
 
EMAIL:  baykalnstacey@hotmail.co.uk 
Tel:  07867 976112 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
 
    

 
 

Personal licence number and issuing Authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
 
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER OF DPS:   
 
ISSUING AUTHORITY:   
 

 
 
 
 

Dated:  6th January 2010 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Catherine Gale 
Licensing Enforcement Officer

8



Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
 
 

9



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
 
 1 Waste receptacles shall be provided by the premises licence holder inside and 
 directly  outside the premises for customers use. 
 
 2 Children under the age of 12 years old shall not be permitted into the premises after 
 7pm unless accompanied by an adult. 
 

10



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 
 
 

11



Annex 4 – Plans 
 

 
 
 

12



APPENDIX 2

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



 
 
 
 

 
Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence Application- Withdrawal Notice 
Notification to Local Authority of Agreement Regarding Police Representations. 

 
 
Licensing Department, 
North West Leicestershire 
District Council 
Council Offices 
Coalville 
LEICS  
LE67 3FJ 
 
20 February 2014 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Licensing Act 2003 – Sunshine, 41 High Street,  Ibstock, Leicester, LE67 6LH  
 
 
I write in my capacity as the licensing officer for the Leicestershire Police. 
 
Discussions have taken place with the applicant in relation to the promotion of the Licensing 
Objectives. 
 
I have current representations submitted with yourselves that the following condition/s should 
be placed upon the new licence: 
 

  
The licensee will ensure that CCTV is installed following advice from the 
Leicestershire Constabulary and maintained in accordance with the Information 
Commissioners CCTV Code of Practice. 
 
All recordings are to be kept for a minimum of 28 days and made available to the 
Police and / or Licensing Authority within 24 hours of the request. 
 
The Challenge 25 Policy will be adopted.  
 
Challenge 25 materials shall be displayed at the premises to inform customers of the 
operation of the Challenge 25 scheme. 
 
Maintain a Refusal Log and made available to the Police and / or Licensing Authority 
within 24 hours of the request. 

 
I enclose a notice of agreement signed by the applicant. 
 
If this is acceptable I do not consider that a hearing is necessary. 
 
 
 

Force Licensing Department 
Mansfield House  

74 Belgrave Gate 
Leicester LE1 3GG 

Tel: 101 
 

www.leics.police.uk 
 

APPENDIX 4 

25



Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
Signed  +++++++++. 
 
Insp Nigel Rixon 

26



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE LICENSING AUTHORITY 
Licensing Act 2003 

 

REPRESENTATION FORM FROM INTERESTED PARTIES 
 

This representation is made by an interested Party in the vicinity of the premises to be licensed 
as detailed below 
 

Your name/organisation 
name/name of body you 
represent 

Nicola Land – Acting Parish Clerk 

Organisation name/name of body 
you represent (if appropriate) 

Ibstock Parish Council 

Postal and email address 
 

57 High Street, Ibstock Ibstock@ymail.com 

Contact telephone number 01530 267318 

 

Name of the premises you are 
making a representation about 

Sunshine takeaway 

Address of the premises you are 
making a representation about 

41 High Street, Ibstock 

 
Your representation must relate to one of the four Licensing Objectives 

Licensing Objective Yes 

Or 

No 

Please detail the evidence supporting your 
representation. Or the reason for your representation. 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

To prevent crime and disorder 
 
 
 

Yes We currently have antisocial behaviour issues being dealt 
with by the police and trading standards due to underage 
drinking, in the skate parks, Leicester road park, and 
behind the  coop. We feel that this will be yet another 
outlet to try and monitor and also feel based on the 
number of takeaway/fast food outlets in the Ibstock Parish, 
this will set a precedent and before long if they all follow 
suit a large majority of the shops on the high street will be 
for alcohol sales of one route or another, 

Public safety 
 
 
 
 

Yes Whilst general Heath is an ongoing issue, this is 
encouraging people to consume alcohol. The take away is 
open from 5pm- 11pm 7 days a week we should be 
promoting a healthy option, not encouraging further outlets 
for alcohol sales.  

To prevent public nuisance 
 
 
 
 

Yes Ibstock has an alcohol ban already in place, though it is 
accepted that it can be purchased from the off licence and 
supermarkets, it is felt that if it can be purchased at the 
point of sale with the takeaway, it will then be taken to the 
open spaces or onto the streets and consumed. There is 
already a considerable amount of litter indicating that the 
takeaways are often consumed alfresco. 

To protect children from harm 
 
 
 
 

yes Whilst it cannot be proven there is concern that this may 
lead to additional littering, especially the danger of glass 
being broken on pavements, and play spaces, once 
consumed and discarded.  
 

 

APPENDIX 5 

27



 
Please suggest any conditions 
that could be added to the 
licence to remedy your 
representation or other 
suggestions you would like the 
Licensing Sub Committee to take 
into account. ** 

-  Alchohol sales to home delivery customers only, not 
on collection. 

- Age restricted sales 
- No promotional alcohol advertising, ie free pizza when 

buying  3 bottles wine, food should still be promoted 
independently of alcohol and the main retail category 
of the business. 

- No home delivery of just liquids, they must purchase 
food. ( A minimum spend) 

 

 -  

 
Signed: Nicola Land     Date:   12/2/2014 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets to: North West Leicestershire Licensing Authority, 
Council Offices, COALVILLE, Leicestershire, LE67 3FJ, or email to Licensing@nwleicestershire.gov.uk 
This form must be returned within the Statutory Period.  For more details please check with the 
Licensing Office on 01530 454528, 01530 454838 or 01530 454844. 

28


	Agenda
	4 APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF:
	Appendix 1 - Premises Licence
	Appendix 2 - Location Map
	Appendix 3 - Application
	Appendix 4 - Police Representations
	Appendix 5 - Ibstock PC representations


